
Cabinet

Date: Wednesday, 4th March, 2020
Time: 4.00 pm
Venue: Council Chamber - Council Offices, London Road, Saffron Walden, 

CB11 4ER

Leader and Chairman: Councillor J Lodge
Members: Councillors A Armstrong, H Asker, D Eke, J Evans, 

N Hargreaves, P Lees and L Pepper

Other attendees: Councillors S Barker (Conservative Party Group Leader), 
C Day (Cabinet Deputy for Community Safety – Police 
and Emergency Services), A Dean (Liberal Democrat 
Party Group Leader), P Fairhurst (Green Party Group 
Leader), N Gregory (Chair of Scrutiny Committee), E 
Oliver (Chair of Governance, Audit and Performance 
Committee), R Pavitt (Uttlesford Independent Party Group 
Leader), A Storah (Cabinet Deputy for Planning) and M 
Sutton (Cabinet Deputy for Communities).

Public Speaking

At the start of the meeting there will be an opportunity of up to 15 minutes for 
members of the public to ask questions and make statements subject to having 
given notice by 12 noon two working days before the meeting.

AGENDA
PART 1

Open to Public and Press

1 Apologies for Absence and Declarations of Interest

To receive any apologies for absence and declarations of interest.

Public Document Pack



2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 5 - 10

To consider the minutes of the meeting held on 5 February 2020. 

3 Questions or Statements from Non-Executive Members of the 
Council (standing item)

To receive questions or statements from non-executive members on 
matters included on the agenda.

4 Matters Referred to the Executive by the Scrutiny Committee 
or by the Council (standing item)

To consider matters referred to the Executive for reconsideration in 
accordance with the provisions of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Procedure Rules or the Budget and Policy Framework Rules.

5 Consideration of reports from overview and scrutiny 
committees (standing item)

To consider any reports from overview and scrutiny committees.

6 Report of Delegated Decisions taken by Cabinet Members 
(standing item)

To receive for information any delegated decisions taken by Cabinet 
Members since the previous Cabinet meeting.

7 Report on assets of community value determined by the 
Assets of Community Value and Local Heritage List 
Committee (standing item)

To receive for information any decisions made by the Assets of 
Community Value and Local Heritage List Committee since the 
previous Cabinet meeting. 

8 Outside Bodies' Appointment

To appoint Cllr LeCount to the Stansted Airport Community Trust. 

9 Energy and Climate Change Working Group - Terms of 
Reference

11 - 12

To amend the Energy and Climate Change Working Group’s Terms 
of Reference approved by Cabinet in September 2019 in light of the 
Green Party Group’s formation and the Youth Council’s request to 
participate in meetings of the Working Group. 

10 Budget Outturn Forecast - Quarter 3 13 - 36



To consider the Budget Outturn - Quarter 3 report.

11 Exemption of Public and Press

Consideration of a report containing exempt information within the 
meaning of section 100I and paragraph 3 part 1 Schedule 12A Local 
Government Act 1972.

PART 2

Exclusion of Public and Press

12 Investment Opportunities 3 and 4 37 - 300

To consider Investment Opportunities 3 and 4. 

The Investment Board is meeting on Thursday, 27 February and its 
comments and recommendations will inform the ‘Investment 
Opportunities 3 and 4’ report that is to be considered by Cabinet. 

Therefore, the report is to follow and expected to be circulated on 
Friday, 28 February. The report and appendices to be considered by 
the Investment Board have been attached for information. 



MEETINGS AND THE PUBLIC

Members of the public are welcome to attend any of the Council’s Cabinet or 
Committee meetings and listen to the debate.  All agendas, reports and minutes can 
be viewed on the Council’s website www.uttlesford.gov.uk. For background papers in 
relation to this meeting please contact committee@uttlesford.gov.uk or phone 01799 
510548/369.

Members of the public and representatives of parish and town councils are permitted 
to speak or ask questions at any of these meetings.  You will need to register with 
the Democratic Services Officer by midday two working days before the meeting.

The agenda is split into two parts.  Most of the business is dealt with in Part I which 
is open to the public.  Part II includes items which may be discussed in the absence 
of the press or public, as they deal with information which is personal or sensitive for 
some other reason.  You will be asked to leave the meeting before Part II items are 
discussed.

Agenda and Minutes are available in alternative formats and/or languages.  For more 
information please call 01799 510510.

Facilities for people with disabilities 
The Council Offices has facilities for wheelchair users, including lifts and toilets.  The 
Council Chamber has an induction loop so that those who have hearing difficulties 
can hear the debate.

If you are deaf or have impaired hearing and would like a signer available at a 
meeting, please contact committee@uttlesford.gov.uk or phone 01799 510548/369 
as soon as possible prior to the meeting.

Fire/emergency evacuation procedure 
If the fire alarm sounds continuously, or if you are instructed to do so, you must leave 
the building by the nearest designated fire exit.  You will be directed to the nearest 
exit by a designated officer.  It is vital you follow their instructions.

For information about this meeting please contact Democratic Services
Telephone: 01799 510369 or 510548 
Email: Committee@uttlesford.gov.uk

General Enquiries
Council Offices, London Road, Saffron Walden, CB11 4ER

Telephone: 01799 510510
Fax: 01799 510550

Email: uconnect@uttlesford.gov.uk
Website: www.uttlesford.gov.uk

http://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/
mailto:committee@uttlesford.gov.uk
mailto:committee@uttlesford.gov.uk
mailto:Committee@uttlesford.gov.uk
mailto:uconnect@uttlesford.gov.uk
http://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/


CABINET held at COUNCIL CHAMBER - COUNCIL OFFICES, LONDON 
ROAD, SAFFRON WALDEN, CB11 4ER, on WEDNESDAY, 5 FEBRUARY 
2020 at 5.00 pm

Present: Councillor J Lodge (Chair)
Councillors A Armstrong, D Eke, J Evans, N Hargreaves, P Lees 
and L Pepper

Officers in 
attendance:

D French (Chief Executive), B Ferguson (Principal Democratic 
Services Officer), A Knight (Assistant Director - Resources), 
S Pugh (Assistant Director - Governance and Legal) and 
A Webb (Director - Finance and Corporate Services)

Also 
present:

Councillors C Day and M Sutton (Cabinet Deputies); A Dean 
(representing the Liberal Democrat Group), B Light 
(representing the Green Group) and R Pavitt (representing the 
Uttlesford Independents’ Group); Councillor N Gregory (Chair of 
the Scrutiny Committee).

CAB71  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Asker.  

CAB72  MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 

The minutes of the meeting held on 9 January 2020 were approved and
signed as a correct record of the meeting.

CAB73  QUESTIONS OR STATEMENTS FROM NON-EXECUTIVE MEMBERS OF THE 
COUNCIL (STANDING ITEM) 

In response to a question from Councillor Gregory, the Leader said there was no 
intention to hold an inquiry into the Local Plan process but the Administration 
would think very carefully on how to proceed. There would be an opportunity at 
the Council meeting in March to take stock of the current situation and to discuss 
the next steps forward.

CAB74  CONSIDERATION OF REPORTS FROM OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEES (STANDING ITEM) 

Councillor Gregory updated Cabinet on the current work of the Scrutiny 
Committee. He said the previous Committee meeting had been productive as a 
number of important items, including the Medium Term Financial Strategy 
(MTFS) and the Corporate Plan, had been considered and scrutinised. Scrutiny 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



welcomed the latest version of the Corporate Plan and were satisfied that the 
updated version was robust. He added that he accepted criticism of the 
Committee’s decision not to scrutinise the budget and that this would be 
redressed during the next municipal cycle. Furthermore, he said the Task & 
Finish Group relating to major planning applications would include Councillors 
LeCount and Dean. 

Councillor Dean said it was unusual that the Scrutiny Committee had taken the 
decision not to scrutinise the budget as this was something that deserved careful 
consideration. 

Councillor Hargreaves said one issue that had made early scrutiny of the budget 
difficult was the late arrival of the central government settlement, details of which 
had only been received in December. He added that the MTFS was effectively a 
summary of the budget and this had been scrutinised at the previous meeting. 

CAB75  DRAFT CORPORATE PLAN 2020 - 2024 

The Leader presented the report to Cabinet, summarising the draft Corporate 
Plan 2020-24. 

Members discussed the Plan and there was agreement that the Plan needed to 
filter down to all staff and members. The Leader said details on an upcoming 
workshop relating to the Delivery Plan would be circulated shortly. 

In response to a comment relating to the Plan’s distribution to Parish and Town 
Councils, the Chief Executive said the Plan would be formally communicated to 
all partners if Council were to approve the Plan.

In response to a question from Councillor Dean regarding the timings of the 
Corporate Plan, the Leader said the imminent Delivery Plan would include 
details on timetabling and the schedule of delivery. 

Councillor Light said the Plan was a series of statements of intent and there was 
a need for resources to be allocated to each item within the Plan and asked for 
the financial details to be outlined in an understandable manner. She also asked 
for clarity on the commitment to support local councils.

Councillor Evans said one example was to assist local councils with the planning 
process by way of education. Funding would be available to allow parish/town 
councils to invite expert planning advisors to deliver seminars and training. 

RESOLVED to recommend the draft Corporate Plan 2020-24 to Council 
for approval.

CAB76  MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY AND BUDGET PROPOSALS - 
2020/21 

Page 6



Councillor Hargreaves presented the report on MTFS and budget proposals for 
2020/21 and provided an overview of the key issues stated in the report. He said 
no questions had been submitted in advance of the paper, although he had 
accepted a request to provide Key Performance Indicator (KPIs) for all Council 
investments, not only those relating to Aspire, during the next budget setting 
process. 

The following areas of the budget report were brought to Cabinet members’ 
attention:

 The minimum safe contingency level for Working Balances 
were £1.3 million for the General Fund and £0.463 million for 
the Housing Revenue Account (HRA). 

 The Commercial Strategy had been considered a number of 
times by Cabinet and had been recommended for approval by 
the Investment Board in January.

 The MFTS had been through the Scrutiny process and set out 
the council’s financial position over the next 5 years. 

 Future years’ allocations for the New Home Bonus would be 
based on legacy payments only, with no payments from 
2023/24.

 Council Tax would be increased by £5 (per annum) in 2020/21 
for a Band D property, with future years based on an uplift of 
1.99%.

 The General Fund – 5 year summary was outlined and 
Members were informed that the Commercial Strategy 2020-
2024 would be key in addressing the deficit and maintaining the 
current level of council services. 

 The Treasury Management Strategy 2020/21 outlined 
borrowing, investments and risks. The Strategy increased 
authorised borrowing and recommended suitable counterparties 
from whom the Council could borrow. 

 The Capital Strategy outlined capital expenditure and financing 
relating to assets that would be used for more than one year. 
For 2020/21, the Council was planning capital expenditure of 
£25million on General Fund projects (ICT development, asset 
maintenance and vehicle replacement), HRA (council housing) 
and Capital Investments. The Annual Minimum Revenue 
Provision statement, which stipulated the minimum provision 
the council was required to put to one side to repay debt in later 
years, stood at £4,212,000 for 2020/21. 

 The creation of the Uttlesford Norse Group had impacted on the 
budget, which had been adjusted to account for this joint 
venture. 

 The Capital Programme April 2020 – March 2025 was predicted 
to spend £76.217 million on the General Fund and HRA over 
this 5 year period. There were no new projects on the current 
programme. 

 The HRA budget and the reserves position for 2020/21 were set 
out. Housing and supported accommodation rents were 
proposed to increase by 2.7% as per government policy. Other 

Page 7



service charges were highlighted, including the increase to 
garage rents of 2.4%. All measures had been endorsed by the 
Housing Board and the Tenants’ Forum.

 The Council Tax requirement for 2020/21 was £5,956,841, 
which balanced to the level of the current yield, assuming an 
increase of £5 in Council Tax for a Band D equivalent property, 

 There would be £300,000 allocated to support members’ 
initiatives and £300,000 to support the Local Plan process. 

 Members’ Priorities could be found in the Corporate Plan 
although there was flexibility as not all of the funding had been 
allocated. The schemes mentioned included: support for the 
neighbourhood plan process, climate change initiatives, the 
Exchange in Stansted Mountfitchet and civic pride projects to 
assist parishes in hosting community events. 

 On the advice of the S151 Officer, the Working Balance would 
be maintained at £1,300,000. 

The Leader thanked Councillor Hargreaves, the Director - Resources and 
Corporate Services and the Assistant Director - Resources for compiling a 
comprehensive report. 

Councillor Pavitt left the meeting at 5.55pm. 

In response to a Member question, the Assistant Director – Resources said 
specific allocations to the Members’ Priorities fund could be found in the 
Corporate Plan. The remaining amount that was left unallocated was below 
£50,000. Furthermore, the Chief Executive said smaller amounts would be 
specified in the Resource Delivery Plan. 

In response to a Member question, Director - Finance and Corporate Services 
said the term ‘Transformation Reserve’ had a similar meaning to ‘Reengineering 
Reserve’.  

Councillor Gregory left the meeting at 6.05pm.   

In response to a Member question, Councillor Lees said the Administration 
would be ambitious and planned to build 200 council houses. The monies 
earmarked for this would be budgeted once the plan had been finalised, but until 
then would remain in the General Reserve.

In response to a Member question, Councillor Pepper said a number of climate 
change initiatives would be rolled out, including tree planting and the reduction of 
plastic waste. These would be considered at the Energy and Climate Change 
Working Group.  

Councillor Dean said he wanted something in the budget on the installation of 
public drinking fountains, or he would submit an amendment at Full Council.

In response to a Member question, the Leader said Members’ Priorities that had 
not been specified in the budget would be set out in the Delivery Plan. The 
schemes outlined would be selected by Members of Cabinet.

Page 8



RESOLVED to recommend to Council the approval of the following 
individual recommendations:

A) Section 25 Report – Robustness of Estimates and 
Adequacy of Reserves:

I. Takes account of the advice in the report when determining 
the 2020/21 General Fund budget and Council Tax

II. Approves the risk assessment relating to the robustness of 
estimates as detailed in the report.

III. Sets the minimum safe contingency level for 2020/21 at 
£1.300 million for the General Fund and £0.463 million for 
the Housing Revenue Account.

IV. Approve the Reserves Strategy set out in Annexe A1
V. Agrees that no transfers to or from the Working Balance 

should be built into the 2020/21 budget.

B) Commercial Strategy
VI. Approve the Commercial Strategy.
VII. Approve the revised investment fund of £300 million. 

C) Medium Term Financial Strategy
VIII. Approve The Medium Term Financial Strategy 

D) Treasury Management Strategy
IX. Approve the Treasury Management Strategy
X. Approve the amended maximum level of investment with 

Money Market Funds from £1 million per fund to £2 million. 
This means a total of £10 million investment over 5 Money 
Market Funds.

E) Capital Strategy
XI. Approve the Capital Strategy
XII. Approve the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) as set out 

in Annexe E1.

F) Capital Programme
XIII. Approve the 5 year Capital Programme 

G) Housing Revenue Account (HRA)
XIV. Approve the Housing Revenue    Account

H) General Fund Revenue and Council Tax
XV. Approve the General Fund Council  Tax requirement of 

£5,956,841
XVI. Approve the schedule of fees and   charges as set out in 

Annexe H6

I) Equalities Impact Assessment
XVII. Note the outcome of the EQIA.

Page 9



CAB78  CORPORATE PLAN DELIVERY PLAN 2019/20 QUARTER 3 PROGRESS 
UPDATE 

The Corporate Plan Delivery Plan 2019/20 Quarter 3 update report was received 
by Cabinet. The report was noted.

The meeting ended at 6.15pm.

Page 10



Energy and Climate Change Working Group: Terms of Reference

Status

This is a working group of the Cabinet. It may make recommendations but is not a decision-making 
body.

Membership

Eleven members of the Council to be appointed by the Cabinet on nomination by group leaders. In 
the event that more than 11 nominations are submitted, Cabinet will be required to vote on who is 
appointed. 

Two Youth Councillors will be invited to attend meetings as non-voting members of the Working 
Group. 

Attendance

Officers will attend to support the Working Group as necessary.

The Working Group may invite other parties to attend and to contribute to meetings as it decides. 

Meetings

The Working Group will fix its own timetable for meetings.

Meetings will be open to the public, subject to the exclusion rules that apply to committee meetings. 
Agendas and minutes will be published on the Council website. 

Officer support

A senior Council officer will be designated as the lead officer for the Working Group. 

Democratic Services will provide administrative support for the Working Group.

Role of the Working Group

The Council has declared a Climate and Ecological Emergency, acting now to prevent a climate and 
ecological catastrophe that will greatly impact our children, grandchildren and future generations

It has also committed to achieving net-zero carbon status by 2030 and protecting and enhancing bio-
diversity.

The Working Group will:

 Enable collaborative working across the Council and engagement with individuals, community 
groups, businesses and other partners in the district, including young people who should have a 
voice to help shape our future.

Page 11

Agenda Item 9



 Investigate steps that may be taken by the Council and by Uttlesford residents and businesses to 
work towards the Council’s commitment to achieving net-zero carbon status by 2030 and 
towards protecting and enhancing bio-diversity.

 Produce a bold plan of action that is realistic, measurable and deliverable for recommendation 
to the Cabinet.  

 Monitor delivery of the action plan once adopted to ensure that significant progress has been 
made to deliver the action plan by April 2023. 

 Identify support needed from Central Government in terms of funding, additional powers and 
policy changes which are needed to achieve the Council’s climate and ecological objectives.

 Make recommendations to the Council, Cabinet or others that would help to achieve the 
Council’s climate and ecological objectives. 

Page 12



Committee: Cabinet 

Title: Budget Outturn 2019/20 - Qtr. 3 Forecast

Portfolio 
Holder:

Portfolio Holder for Finance and Budget 

Date: 
Tuesday, 4 March 
2020

Report 
Author:

Angela Knight, Assistant Director - Resources
aknight@uttlesford.gov.uk
 

Key decision:  
N

Summary

1. This report details financial performance relating to the General Fund, Housing 
Revenue Account, Capital Programme and Treasury Management. It is based upon 
actual expenditure and income from April to December and predicts a forecast for the 
end of the 2019/20 financial year.

2. The General Fund is forecasting a £10,000 underspend, made up of net variances in 
direct services and net reductions in capital financing.

3. The Housing Revenue Account is forecasting a net operating surplus of £640,000; 
after in year reserves adjustments this gives an overall budget surplus of £385,000.

4. The Capital Programme is forecasting a current year underspend of £7,059,000; this 
is due to requested slippage of £7,027,000 to be carried forward to 2020/21. This 
leaves an actual underspend of £32,000.

5. Treasury management activity has been in accordance with the Strategy.

Recommendations

6. The Cabinet is recommended to approve the General Fund, Housing Revenue 
Account and Capital Programme outturn forecast position and the updated use of 
reserves.

Financial Implications

7. Any financial implications are contained in the body of this report.

Background Papers

8. No background papers have been referred to in the preparation of this report.

Page 13

Agenda Item 10



Impact 

9.  

Communication/Consultation Budget Managers and Corporate Management 
Team

Community Safety N/A

Equalities N/A

Health and Safety N/A

Human Rights/Legal 
Implications

N/A

Sustainability N/A

Ward-specific impacts N/A

Workforce/Workplace N/A

General Fund Revenue Account

10. The net operating expenditure is £3,422,000 underspent and after adjusting for the 
associated use of reserves, this gives an overall net underspend of £10,000. The 
following table provides a summary of the budget outturn and full details of service 
income and expenditure is shown in Appendix A.

2018/19 
£'000 Original Current Forecast Variance

Outturn Budget Budget Outturn

Communities & Partnerships 778 895 853 1,290 437
Housing & Economic Development 1,485 1,792 1,792 1,664 (127)
Environmental Services 2,454 3,481 4,123 4,074 (49)
Finance & Administration 5,507 6,781 6,181 5,775 (406)

Portfolio (Service) Budgets 10,224 12,948 12,948 12,803 (145)

Corporate Items (1,736) (1,705) 4,031 835 (3,195)

Total Net Budget 8,487 11,243 16,979 13,638 (3,341)

Funding (5,614) (7,609) (7,609) (7,690) (82)

Net Operating Profit 2,874 3,634 9,370 5,948 (3,422)

Transfers to/(from) Reserves 2,457 2,023 (3,713) (301) 3,413

OVERALL NET POSITION 5,331 5,657 5,657 5,647 (10)

2019/20

Page 14



Budget Movements (original to current)

11. The original budget for 2019/20 approved by Council on 25 February 2019 has been 
updated and this is reflected in the current budget. The adjustments relate to the 
following items:

 Services (Portfolio’s) – No changes to the overall budget total for services. To 
allow for more transparency and clarity of spending relating to Garden 
Communities a new cost centre has been set up. The total budget movements 
are £909,000, this will now all be managed and reported within Garden 
Planning (GGP), the budget virements are as follows:

 £600,000 from Corporate Team for Garden Communities delivery

 £309,000 from Planning Policy for Development Plan Document 
preparation

 Capital Financing – the increase in the current budget from the original of 
£5,736,000 is the financing of the capital programme slippage brought forward 
from 2018/19 as approved at July Cabinet.

Variances 

12. The forecast position for quarter 3 shows a bottom line variance of £10,000 
underspend compared to the quarter 2 position of £7,000 overspend, giving a 
decrease in net expenditure of £17,000 compared to quarter 2. 

13. The services budget is predicting a net underspend of £145,224, after adjusting for 
the associated reserves movements the actual variance in direct services is a net 
underspend of £126,704.

14. The table below gives a summary of the under and overspends related to each 
portfolio service area. The table also identifies whether these are for one year only or 
expected to continue in future years (ongoing) and the reserves movements directly 
associated to service activities. Further details of the reserves movements can be 
found in paragraph 21.

One off Ongoing One off Ongoing Other 
Immaterial

Total Net 
Variance

Communities & Partnerships (99) (48) 525 66 (6) 437
Housing & Economic Development (393) (30) 306 0 (9) (127)
Environmental Services (949) (543) 1,070 363 10 (49)
Finance & Admin (828) (2,158) 613 1,948 19 (406)
Total Service Variances (2,269) (2,780) 2,513 2,377 14 (145)

Use of reserves
Grants & Contributions (500)
Corporate Management 185
Planning Policy 52 (101)
Development Control (25)
Legal Services (12)
Garden Communities 341 (85)
Homelessness 116 (24)
Private Finance Init 60
Health Improvement 12

Actual Service Variances net of reserves (1,503) (2,780) 1,766 2,377 14 (127)

Savings/Additional Income Increased costs/Decreased 

Page 15



15. The key variances greater than £30,000 that are not funded through the use of 
reserves are detailed below:

Overspends/Reduced income

 Development Control, £352,000 - this relates to the increase in planning 
appeals and the professional fees and legal costs related to the undetermined 
Stansted Airport planning application

 Waste and Recycling – £111,000 additional processing/disposal fees due to 
an increase in cost per tonne from the original budget

 Building Surveying, £89,000 - income has decreased due to decline in 
applications for the service

 Offices - £52,000 increased costs of unplanned repairs to council owned 
buildings

Underspends/Increased income

 Housing Benefits Subsidy - £221,000 - subsidy income originally calculated at 
98% of expenditure due to updated information and accuracy rates this has 
been uplifted to 99%

 Waste and Recycling - £85,000 is due to the reduced cost of diesel and 
providing the bin delivery service in house

 Public Health, £83,000 - additional income due to higher levels of food imports 
through the Border Inspection Post at Stansted Airport

 Planning Policy, £55,000 - service restructure reduced staffing by 1 full time 
post

 Financial Services, £48,000 - insurance renewal (all categories) has 
generated a reduced annual premium

 Council Tax Discounts - £38,000 predicted increase in the income from the 
Essex Sharing Agreement for additional tax base growth in year

 Central Services, £33,000 underspend - staff vacancy

16. The variance of £3,195,000 in the Corporate costs relate to the following items:

 Capital Financing – £3,079,000 mainly relates to the decreased cost of 
financing for two capital projects, the New Depot Site and the Superfast 
broadband project, this has no bottom line budget impact as both these are 
funded directly from the reserves where there is a contra entry

 Investment Income/charges – the net increase of £116,000 (reduction in 
borrowing costs and increase in income) is due to the re-profiling of the 
additional loans to Aspire (CRP) Ltd

Page 16



Key Risks

17. The outturn forecast is the most informed prediction we have at this point in time and 
is reliant on estimates and assumptions provided by service managers.

18. Detailed below are the areas which are deemed as HIGH risk and have the potential 
to materially affect our year-end financial position.

 Planning - The Council has received the letter from the Inspectors examining 
the Local Plan, it expresses concerns that the Garden Communities proposals 
are insufficiently justified and have not been shown to have a reasonable 
prospect of being delivered as submitted. Work is currently being undertaken 
to ascertain whether to withdraw the plan and prepare a new one, as the 
inspectors suggest, rather than submit a considerable amount of new evidence 
for consideration by the inspectors on the current plan

 Planning Appeals - Forecasting whether decisions will be appealed is difficult 
to assess, and costs could continue to escalate above the overspend currently 
reported

 Business Rates Retention - the total business rate income recognised in the 
Council’s account is subject to change, due to the difficulty in estimating the 
year end business rate levy, realisation of appeals and the impact of 
revaluations carried out by the Valuation Office Agency (VOA). The Council is 
reliant on the VOA to release these figures and for UDC’s consultant to assess 
the potential impact on the appeals provision at year end promptly. The actual 
position is not known until year end and it is difficult to estimate this during the 
year.

 Housing Benefit Subsidy Income Claims – due to the complexity of the 
subsidy claim, a change in number of claimants throughout the year and the 
high financial value of the subsidy income, even a small % change can have a 
significant impact on the budget.  For example a 1% change to caseload can 
increase or decrease the bottom line by approximately £68k.

General Fund Reserves

19. The balance of all reserves at 1 April 2019 was £17,420,000, with a predicted net 
drawdown of £301,000 this leaves an estimated year-end balance of £17,119,000. 
The complete reserves position is set out in Appendix B.

20. Within ‘all reserves’ are usable reserves which had a balance of £13,033,000 at 1 
April 2019 with a predicted net drawdown of £916,000 this leaves a year-end balance 
of £12,117,000. 

21. The current budget had an estimated £3,713,000 net use of reserves; the current 
forecast shows a net reduction of £3,413,000 in the amount of reserves required in-
year. The changes to and (from) reserves are detailed in the following table:

Page 17



Movement in Reserves Change £ 
to/(from)

Details of transfer

Grants & Contributions (500) Funds allocated for Carver Barracks Grant
Planning Policy 259 Reduced requirement in current year for funding of Local Plan consultancy
Development Control (25) Drawdown to cover reduced S106 funds in year
Transformation (12) Funding for additional resource for review of the governance process
Garden Communities (53) Allocation of MHCLG grant to support revenue costs
Corporate Management 185 Government funding for additional work relating to EU Exit
Homelessness 112 Government funding for programme of work to support homelessness
Private Finance Init 60 Additional income to support predicted future year deficits
Health Improvement 12 External funding to support programme of work for health and wellbeing
Service Movement to / (from) Reserves 38
Business Rates 111 Estimated surplus to support future years deficits
Capital Slippage 707 Funding Contribution for superfast broadband not required in year
New Homes Bonus Ward Members 16 Release of grant income as per criteria for council new administration  
Waste Depot Relocation Project 2,563 Funding of the depot not required in line with the slippage in the capital programme
Working Balance (22) Adjustment to reflect actual net expenditure
Total Movement to / (from) Reserves 3,413

Housing Revenue Account (HRA)

22. The HRA is forecasting a net operating surplus of £640,000, after allowing for 
revenue funding for the Capital Programme and reserve transfers an overall surplus 
of £385,000 is predicted. A detailed budget analysis is attached as Appendix C and 
the following table gives a summary of the key items of income and expenditure.

£'000 Original Current Forecast
Budget Budget Outturn Variance

Total Service Income (15,352) (15,352) (15,869) (517)
Total Service Expenditure 4,491 4,491 4,504 13
Total Corporate Items 10,710 10,710 10,726 16

OPERATING (SURPLUS)/DEFICIT (150) (150) (640) (488)

Funding of Capital Programme from HRA 2,690 2,690 2,612 (78)
Use of Reserves (2,539) (2,539) (2,358) 181

Total Use of Reserves/Funding 151 151 254 104

(SURPLUS)/DEFICIT 0 0 (385) (385)

2019/20

23. The key variances are related to increased income and are detailed below;

  £139,000 - rental income due to Reynolds Court being completed and units 
being tenanted earlier than anticipated. 

Page 18



 £112,000 – charges for services and facilities have been adjusted to match 
actual costs

 £267,000 – compensation claim relating to the infrastructure works at 
Stansted Airport and the financial impact on the housing stock values

24. The HRA reserves position as at the 1 April 2019 is £3,042,000; after allowing for in-
year forecast drawdowns on reserves of £358,000 this leaves an estimated year-end 
balance of £2,684,000. Full details of all the reserves can be seen in Appendix D.

Capital Programme

25. The Capital Programme original budget was set at £11,772,000 after allowing for 
capital slippage from 2018/19 of £11,034,000 (approved by Cabinet in the Budget 
Outturn report presented on 15 July) this gives an updated current budget of 
£22,806,000. Full details of the capital programme are shown in Appendix E; this 
includes tables detailing the Section 106 balances.

26. The total predicted spend for the year is £15,747,000 generating a net underspend of 
£7,059,000; after allowing for in year slippage of £7,027,000 this leaves an actual 
underspend of £32,000.

27. The key project where slippage is being requested for 2019/20 to be carried forward 
to 2020/21 relate to the following:

General Fund

 Depot Relocation, £2,563,000 – the application was heard at Planning 
Committee on 15 January 2020 and was refused. The landowner is currently 
reviewing his options on the way forward and the slippage is reflective of this 
decision

 Superfast Broadband, £600,000 – Gigaclear have announced that the 
completion of the rollout of full fibre broadband for Uttlesford has been delayed 
until December 2021

Housing Revenue Account

 The Moors, £1,960,000 – the formal processes of planning approval and the 
subsequent contractor procurement process took longer than anticipated, as of 
4th November a contract has been awarded

 Walden Place, £1,762,000 – A Joint Venture was being reviewed as an option 
for delivery, it has now been agreed the council will carry out the works 
directly. Discussions have been ongoing with planners and the conservation 
service to work up plan drawings to allow a Pre-App to be submitted

Treasury Management

28. Treasury Management Activities have been in accordance with the strategy. Full 
details of all the council’s investments and borrowing is attached as Appendix F.

29. The HM Treasury increased the interest rates by 1% on Public Works Loan Board 
(PWLB) lending from the 7 October on new borrowing only. The following is an extract 
from the HM Treasury correspondence. 

Page 19



‘PWLB lending is offered at a fixed margin above the Government’s cost of borrowing, as 
measured by gilt yields. The Treasury raised the margin over gilts to 100bps (one percentage 
point) in 2010, to better reflect the availability of capital finance, and lowered it to 80bps over 
gilts in 2013 for qualifying authorities. 

Some local authorities have substantially increased their use of the PWLB in recent months, as 
the cost of borrowing has fallen to record lows. HM Treasury is therefore restoring interest 
rates to levels available in 2018, by increasing the margin that applies to new loans from the 
PWLB by 100bps (one percentage point) on top of usual lending terms. 

This restoration of normal PWLB lending rates will apply to all new loans with immediate 
effect. The Government will monitor the impact of this change and keep rates policy under 
review.’

30. The average rates of interest for the period April to December are shown in the table 
below; this also shows the change in the average rate between quarters.

Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3

Investments short term 0.55% 0.54% 0.56%
Borrowing short term 0.75% 0.69% 0.71%

31. The council’s long term investments relate to the loan to Aspire (CRP) Ltd for the 
purchase of the 50% share of Chesterford Research Park and the ongoing 
development of the park. The table below provides details of both the actual 
investments to date and future agreed amounts:

Drawdown Date Amount Term Rate Basis Annual Interest 
Receivable

£'000 % £'000

03/05/2017 47,250 50 years 4 Interest only 1,890
26/03/2018 223 49 years 1 months 4 Interest only 8,920
02/01/2019 2,518 48 years 4 months 4 Interest only 100,720
20/08/2019 3,000 20 years 4.5 Principal and Interest 78,750
TBC 1,250 Ending on 20/08/39 4.5 Principal and Interest 0

32. The additional funds to Aspire (CRP) Ltd are for the refurbishment and refit of the 
Newnham building.

33. The council has two long term loans

 General Fund, £10,000,000 with Phoenix Life Ltd as the first tranche of 
funding for the council’s investment in Aspire (CRP) Ltd on an interest only 
basis. The fixed rate of interest of 2.86%, gives an annual interest payment of 
£286,000.

 Housing Revenue Account, £84,807,000 to fund the purchase of the council’s 
housing stock; this is a mix of fixed and variable rate loans. The annual 

Page 20



interest payment is £2,604,000 with a current annual principal repayment of 
£2,000,000.

Risk Analysis

Risk Likelihood Impact Mitigating actions

Actual income and expenditure 
will vary from forecast, requiring 
adjustments to budget and/or 
service delivery. Detailed risks are 
set out in paragraphs 16 - 20 in 
the main body of the report.

2 – some 
variability 
is 
inevitable

2 – budget 
will be closely 
monitored 
and prompt 
action taken 
to deal with 
variances 

Budgetary 
Monitoring and 
monthly analysis 
of the financial 
position

1 = Little or no risk or impact
2 = Some risk or impact – action may be necessary.
3 = Significant risk or impact – action required
4 = Near certainty of risk occurring, catastrophic effect or failure of project.

Appendix A
General Fund Summary – 2019/20

Page 21



2018/19
£'000 Outturn Current 

Budget
Actuals to 

Date
Variance 
to Date

Original 
Budget

Current 
Budget

Forecast 
Outturn

Forecast to 
Budget 

Variance

Portfolio Budgets
Community & Partnerships 778 635 1,055 420 895 853 1,290 437
Housing & Economic Development 1,485 1,351 924 (427) 1,792 1,792 1,664 (127)
Environmental 2,454 2,994 2,326 (668) 3,481 4,123 4,074 (49)
Finance & Administration 5,507 4,527 3,789 (738) 6,781 6,181 5,775 (406)
Total - Portfolio Budgets 10,224 9,507 8,094 (1,413) 12,948 12,948 12,803 (145)

Corporate Items
Capital Financing Costs 1,704 1,892 7,628 4,549 (3,079)
Interest Charges 382 495 495 469 (26)
Investment Income (1,971) (2,119) (2,119) (2,209) (91)
Impairment allowance 8 0 0 0 0
Pension Fund - Added Years 87 85 85 85 0
Corporate Core HRA Share (374) (366) (366) (366) 0
Recharge to HRA (1,572) (1,693) (1,693) (1,693) 0
Subtotal - Corporate Items (1,736) (1,705) 4,031 835 (3,195)

Subtotal - Budgets 8,487 11,243 16,979 13,638 (3,341)

Funding
Council Tax - Collection Fund Balance (14) (67) (67) (67) 0
Business Rates - Collection Fund Balance 384 (941) (941) (1,052) (111)
Business Rates - UDC Share (net of tariff) (2,201) (2,577) (2,577) (2,205) 372
Business Rates - Levy/(Safety Net) Payment 762 566 566 447 (119)
Business Rates - Section 31 Funding (1,274) (1,212) (1,212) (1,441) (229)
Business Rates - Renewable Energy Schemes (126) (129) (129) (124) 5
Rural Services Delivery Grant (279) (279) (279) (279) 0
New Homes Bonus (2,864) (2,969) (2,969) (2,969) 0
Subtotal - Funding (5,614) (7,609) (7,609) (7,690) (82)

Net Operating Expenditure 2,874 3,634 9,370 5,948 (3,422)

Transfer to/(from) Reserves
Business Rates 280 941 941 1,052 111
Licensing 90 24 24 24 0
Capital Slippage 205 0 (1,173) (466) 707
Working Balance (49) 28 28 6 (22)
Medium Term Financial Strategy 336 0 0 0 0
Transformation (9) 0 0 (12) (12)
EU Exit 128 200 200 385 185
Funding 0 1,060 1,060 1,060 0
Economic Development 46 0 0 0 0
Elections 25 (55) (55) (55) 0
Homelessness 92 (20) (20) 92 112
Health and Wellbeing 26 0 0 12 12
Planning and Development (183) (309) (309) (75) 234
Strategic Initiatives 0 0 0 (500) (500)
Development Projects 1,152 0 0 (53) (53)
New Homes Bonus Ward Members (16) (16) (16) 0 16
Waste Depot Relocation Project 280 0 (4,563) (2,000) 2,563
Waste Management (14) 170 170 170 0
Private Finance Initiative 67 0 0 60 60
Subtotal - Movement in  General Fund Reserves 2,457 2,023 (3,713) (301) 3,413

COUNCIL TAX REQUIREMENT 5,331 5,657 5,657 5,647 (10)

Council Tax (precept levied on Collection Fund) (5,330) (5,657) (5,657) (5,657) 0

(Surplus)/Deficit 0 0 0 (10) (10)

April to December 2019/20

Appendix A continued…
Community and Partnerships

Page 22



2018/19 
£'000 Outturn Original Current Forecast Variance

Budget Budget Outturn Qtr.3

Community Information 48 47 47 50 2
Day Centres 67 73 73 84 11
Emergency Planning 1 26 26 32 6
Grants & Contributions 351 358 358 851 493
Leisure & Performance 67 83 41 43 2
Saffron Walden Museum 186 215 215 213 (1)
New Homes Bonus 96 78 78 78 0
Private Finance Init (32) 15 15 (47) (62)
Communities Partnership 0 0 0 0 0
Renovation Grants (5) 0 0 (14) (14)

Portfolio Total 778 895 853 1,290 437

2019/20

Housing and Economic Development

2018/19 
£'000 Outturn Original Current Forecast Variance

Budget Budget Outturn Qtr.3

Building Surveying (40) (126) (126) (19) 107
Committee Admin 294 346 346 342 (4)
Customer Services Centre 379 451 451 447 (4)
Democratic Represent 324 361 361 342 (20)
Economic Development 225 265 265 266 1
Energy Efficiency 26 34 34 30 (4)
Health Improvement 119 155 155 120 (35)
Homelessness 89 234 234 118 (116)
Lifeline (155) (159) (159) (159) 0
Communications 224 229 229 177 (52)

Portfolio Total 1,485 1,792 1,792 1,664 (127)

2019/20

Appendix A continued…

Environmental Services

Page 23



2018/19 
£'000 Outturn Original Current Forecast Variance

Budget Budget Outturn Qtr.3

Animal Warden 29 16 16 7 (9)
Grounds Maintenance 296 333 333 344 11
Car Park (732) (661) (661) (710) (49)
Development Control (499) (241) (245) 115 361
Depots 45 51 51 51 (0)
Garden Planning 0 0 909 654 (256)
Street Cleansing 411 403 403 432 29
Housing Strategy 50 54 54 56 2
Highways (0) 4 4 3 (1)
Local Amenities 8 (12) (12) (12) (0)
Licensing (257) (375) (375) (391) (16)
Vehicle Management 496 477 477 456 (22)
Public Health 584 669 669 565 (104)
Planning Management 345 385 392 381 (11)
Planning Policy 437 1,334 1,022 964 (58)
Planning Specialists 145 151 151 150 (1)
Waste Management 578 363 363 448 84
Community Safety 235 286 328 315 (13)
Street Services 284 244 244 247 3

Portfolio Total 2,454 3,481 4,123 4,074 (49)

2019/20

Appendix A continued…
Finance and Administration

Page 24



2018/19 
£'000 Outturn Original Current Forecast Variance

Budget Budget Outturn Qtr.3

Benefits Admin 224 301 301 285 (16)
Corporate Management 1,070 1,291 1,291 1,108 (183)
Conveniences 20 20 20 20 0
Central Services 449 444 444 399 (45)
Corporate Team 40 682 82 117 35
Conducting Elections 1 101 101 117 16
Electroral Registration 31 55 55 44 (11)
Financial Services 1,098 1,111 1,111 1,064 (47)
Housing Benefits (5) 72 72 (149) (221)
Human Resources 299 280 280 284 3
Internal Audit 126 139 139 141 2
Information Technology 1,362 1,402 1,402 1,420 18
Land Charges (86) (88) (88) (61) 27
Legal Services 186 179 179 186 7
Local Taxation (108) (90) (90) (90) 0
Non Domestic Rates (144) (144) (144) (146) (2)
Office Cleaning 179 208 208 207 (1)
Offices 376 377 377 433 56
Revenues Admin 536 582 582 575 (7)
Council Tax Discounts (150) (141) (141) (180) (38)

Portfolio Total 5,507 6,781 6,181 5,775 (406)

2019/20

Appendix B
General Fund Reserves

Page 25



Balance Forecast Transfer From Forecast Transfer to Forecast Transfer Forecast Balance
£'000 1st April 2019 General Fund General Fund Between Reserves 31st March 2020

RINGFENCED RESERVES
Business Rates 1,781 1,052 2,833
Departments for Work and Pensions 71 71
Licensing 90 57 (33) 114
Capital Slippage 1,171 (466) 705
Working Balance 1,272 6 1,278
TOTAL RINGFENCED RESERVES 4,387 1,115 (499) 0 5,002

USABLE RESERVES
Financial Management Reserves
Medium Term Financial Strategy 1,336 450 (450) 1,336
Transformation 1,168 (12) 1,157
EU Exit 128 385 513
Funding 0 1,060 1,060

2,632 1,895 (462) 0 4,065
Contingency Reserves
Emergency Response 40 40

40 0 0 0 40
Service Reserves
Economic Development 61 61
Elections 100 25 (80) 45
Homelessness 218 116 (24) 310

Health and Wellbeing 72 12 84

Planning 1,247 52 (75) 1,224

Neighbourhood Planning 70 (27) 43
Housing Strategy 25 25
Development Control 159 (25) 134
Strategic Initiatives 2,160 (500) 1,660
Development Projects 1,152 (53) 1,099

New Homes Bonus Ward Members 0 0 0
Waste Depot Relocation Project 4,649 (2,000) 2,649
Waste Management 201 170 371
Private Finance Initiative 247 60 307

10,361 435 (2,784) 0 8,012

TOTAL USABLE RESERVES 13,033 2,330 (3,246) 0 12,117

TOTAL GENERAL FUND RESERVES 17,420 3,445 (3,745) 0 17,119

Appendix C
Housing Revenue Account Summary - 2019/20

Page 26



£000 Current 
Budget

Actuals to 
Date

Variance to 
Date

Original 
Budget

Current 
Budget

Forecast 
Outturn

Forecast 
Variance to 

Current 
Budget

Housing Revenue Account Income
Dwellings Rent (10,610) (10,692) (82) (14,147) (14,147) (14,287) (139)
Garage Rents (168) (168) (0) (224) (224) (224) (0)
Land Rents (3) (2) 1 (3) (3) (3) (0)
Charges for Services & Facilities (733) (832) (99) (977) (977) (1,089) (112)
Contributions Towards Expenditure 0 (4) (4) 0 0 (267) (267)
Total Service Income (11,514) (11,698) (184) (15,352) (15,352) (15,869) (517)

Housing Finance & Business Management
Business & Performance Management 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Rents, Rates & Other Property Charges 56 98 42 75 75 102 27

56 98 42 75 75 102 27

Housing Maintenance & Repairs Services
Common Service Flats 153 103 (50) 204 204 204 0
Estate Maintenance 114 96 (18) 152 152 152 0
Housing Repairs 1,920 2,124 204 2,561 2,561 2,583 22
Housing Sewerage 43 44 1 58 58 58 0
Newport Depot 18 15 (3) 24 24 24 0
Property Services 239 249 10 318 318 328 10

2,488 2,632 144 3,317 3,317 3,350 32

Housing Management & Homelessness
Housing Services 352 308 (44) 470 470 435 (34)
Sheltered Housing Services 472 441 (31) 629 629 617 (13)
Supporting People 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

824 749 (75) 1,099 1,099 1,052 (47)
Total Service Expenditure 3,368 3,479 111 4,491 4,491 4,504 13

Corporate Items
Bad Debt Provision 0 0 0 100 100 100 0
Depreciation - Dwellings (to MRR) 0 0 0 3,888 3,888 3,888 0
Depreciation - Non-Dwellings (to MRR) 0 0 0 91 91 91 0
Impairment - Non-Dwellings 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Interest / Costs - HRA Loan 1,313 1,313 (0) 2,604 2,604 2,604 0
Repayment of Loan 0 0 0 2,000 2,000 2,000 0
Investment Income 0 0 0 (42) (42) (26) 16
Recharge from General Fund 0 0 0 1,695 1,695 1,695 0
HRA Share of Corporate Core 0 0 0 366 366 366 0
Pension Fund - Added Years 0 0 0 19 19 19 0
Pension Fund - Deficit 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Right to Buy Admin Cost Allowance (8) 0 8 (10) (10) (10) 0
Total Corporate Items 1,305 1,313 8 10,710 10,710 10,726 16

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 4,673 4,792 118 15,201 15,201 15,230 29

OPERATING (SURPLUS)/DEFICIT (6,840) (6,906) (66) (150) (150) (640) (488)

Funding from Capital Receipts Reserve for HRA Loan 0 0 0 (2,000) (2,000) (2,000) 0

Funding of Capital Programme from HRA
Funding of Action Plan Capital Items 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Funding of Capital from Revenue 0 0 0 2,690 2,690 2,612 (78)

0 0 0 2,690 2,690 2,612 (78)

Transfers to/from (-) Reserves
Capital Projects Reserve 0 0 0 (153) (153) 0 153
Potential Developments (New Builds) 0 0 0 (355) (355) 0 355
Sheltered Housing Reserve 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
HRA Capital Slippage Reserve 0 0 0 0 0 (370) (370)
Transformation Reserve 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Working Balance 0 0 0 (31) (31) 12 43

0 0 0 (539) (539) (358) 181
Total Use of Reserve / Funding 0 0 0 2,151 2,151 2,254 104

(SURPLUS)/DEFICIT (6,840) (6,906) (66) 0 0 (385) (385)

April to December 2019/20

Appendix D
Housing Revenue Account Reserves

Page 27



Reserve Actual Balance
Forecast transfer 

from HRA
Forecast Transfer 

to HRA
Transfer between 

Reserves
Estimated Balance

£'000 1st April 2019 31st March 2020

RINGFENCED RESERVES
Working Balance 489 12 0 0 501

489 12 0 0 501
USABLE RESERVES
Revenue Reserves
Transformation / Change Management 180 0 0 0 180
Revenue Projects 60 0 0 0 60

240 0 0 0 240
Capital Reserves
Capital Projects 13 0 0 60 73
Potential Development Projects 0 0 0 0 0
Sheltered Housing Projects 0 0 0 0 0
HRA Slippage Reserve 2,300 508 (878) (60) 1,870

2,313 508 (878) 0 1,943

TOTAL USABLE RESERVES 2,553 508 (878) 0 2,183

TOTAL RESERVES 3,042 520 (878) 0 2,684

Reserve with conditions Actual Balance
Forecast transfer 

from HRA
Forecast Transfer to 

HRA
Estimated Balance

£'000 1st April 2019 31st March 2020

Capital Receipt Reserve - RTB 3,226 1,440 (3,672) 994
Capital Receipt Reserve - Other 40 470 (500) 10
Capital Receipt Reserve - Total 3,266 1,910 (4,172) 1,004

Major Repairs Reserve (MRR) 473 3,979 (3,875) 577

Page 28



Appendix E
General Fund Capital Programme

£'000 Cost Code
Actual

to December
Original Budget       

2019/20
Slippage from 

2018/19

Budget adjustment 
as agreed by 

Cabinet/Other 
budget virements

Current Budget       
2019/20

Forecast 
Outturn

Forecast to 
Budget 

Variance

Requested 
Slippage to 

2020/21

Total HRA 6,187 9,769 3,086 0                    12,855 8,977 (3,878)
3,742 

Total General Fund 3,126 2,003 7,948 0                      9,951 6,770 (3,181) 3,285 

CAPITAL PROGRAMME TOTAL 9,313 11,772 11,034 0 22,806 15,747 (7,059) 7,027 

£'000 Cost Code
Actual

to December
Original Budget       

2019/20
Slippage from 

2018/19

Budget adjustment 
as agreed by 

Cabinet/Other 
budget virements

Current Budget       
2019/20

Forecast 
Outturn

Forecast to 
Budget 

Variance

Requested 
Slippage to 

2020/21

Community and Partnerships
S/W Motte & Bailey Castle CGF119/6801 73 0 54 54 110 56 
Community Project Grants CGF502/6842 46 110 0 110 110 0 
Total Community and Partnerships 119 110 54 0 164 220 56 0 

Environmental Services
White Street Car Park CGF108/6801 0 0 25 25 25 0 
Household Bins CGF300/6822 36 70 0 70 70 0 
Trade Waste Bins CGF301/6822 35 30 0 30 35 5 
Kitchen Caddies CGF304/6822 4 10 0 10 5 (5)
Garden Waste Bins CGF308/6822 11 20 0 20 20 0 
Car Parking Machine Replacement CGF321/6822 0 0 92 92 0 (92) 92 
Electric Car Charges CGF323/6822 14 0 0 0 10 10 
Grounds Maintenance Equipment CGF307/6822 16 0 0 0 16 16 
Vehicle Replacement Programme CGF602/6823 2,322 822 2,174 2,996 2,996 0 
Total Environmental Services 2,438 952 2,291 0 3,243 3,177 (66) 92 

Housing and Economic Development
Compulsory Purchase Order CGF125/6821 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Private Sector Renewal Grants CGF500/6841 0 70 0 70 70 0 
Disabled Facilities Grants CGF503/6841 133 260 0 260 260 0 
Empty Dwellings CGF505/6841 0 10 0 10 10 0 
Air Quality Monitoring SW CGF322/6822 13 15 0 15 15 0 
Superfast Broadband CGF528/6841 0 0 600 600 0 (600) 600 
Total Housing and Economic Development 146 355 600 0 955 355 (600) 600 

P
age 29



Appendix E continued…

£'000 Cost Code
Actual

to December
Original Budget       

2019/20
Slippage from 

2018/19

Budget adjustment 
as agreed by 

Cabinet/Other 
budget virements

Current Budget       
2019/20

Forecast 
Outturn

Forecast to 
Budget 

Variance

Requested 
Slippage to 

2020/21

Finance &  Administration
IT Schemes
Minor Items IT CGF401/6834 3 20 0 20 20 0 
PCI Compliance CGF413/6834 34 20 28 48 48 0 
New members IT equipment CGF416/6824 33 30 0 30 30 0 
PSN CoCo Works CGF425/6824 0 30 20 50 50 0 
Core Switches - replacement CGF433/6824 5 0 24 24 24 0 
Replacement Electoral System CGF434/6824 0 0 60 60 30 (30)
Hot Desking/Mobile working CGF435/6824 96 90 6 96 96 0 
Asset Management System - Cap Pur IT CGF437/6824 0 0 30 30 30 0 30 
Cyber Security - Cap Pur IT CGF438/6824 0 20 12 32 32 0 
Grounds Maint & Vehicle Sys - Cap Pur IT CGF439/6824 0 0 95 95 95 0 
Idox Additional Modules - Cap Pur IT CGF441/6824 0 0 5 5 5 0 
Licensing - Lalpac to Idox Uni - Cap Pur IT CGF442/6824 0 0 16 16 16 0 
ArcGIS Upgrade - Cap Pur IT CGF443/6824 0 0 21 21 21 0 
Mobile / Web Payments - Cap Pur IT CGF444/6824 40 40 0 40 40 0 
Network Monitor&Threat Protect - Cap Pur IT CGF445/6824 0 30 0 30 30 0 
Postal Software - Cap Pur IT CGF446/6824 0 27 0 27 27 0 

UDC Asset work
London Rd Office Building works CGF112/6801 27 173 0 173 257 84 
New Depot CGF103/6801 68 0 4,563 4,563 2,000 (2,563) 2,563 
Day Centres Cyclical Improvements CGF115/6801 17 46 27 73 45 (28)
Guildhall Works CGF116/6801 18 0 0 0 18 18 
Museum Buildings work CGF123/6801 42 45 4 49 49 0 
London Rd Office Heating CGF315/6822 0 0 36 36 0 (36)
London Rd Office Electrical CGF316/6822 29 15 56 71 45 (26)
White Street Car Park - Lighting CGF108/6822 11 0 0 0 10 10 
Total Finance & Administration 424 586 5,003 0 5,589 3,018 (2,571) 2,593 

P
age 30



Appendix E continued…

Housing Revenue Account Capital Programme

£'000 Cost Code
Actual

to December
Original Budget       

2019/20
Slippage from 

2018/19

Budget adjustment 
as agreed by 

Cabinet/Other 
budget virements

Current Budget       
2019/20

Forecast 
Outturn

Forecast to 
Budget 

Variance

Requested 
Slippage to 

2020/21

Housing Revenue Account
HRA Repairs 2,077 3,445 54 3,499 3,438 (61)
UPVC Fascia's and Guttering CHR223/6812 2 100 0 100 100 0 
Light Vans Replacement Programme CHR300/6823 0 0 183 183 0 (183) 0 
HRA IT - Sheltered Digital Upgrade CHR400/6841 0 0 20 20 0 (20) 20 
Cash Incentive Scheme Grants CHR500/6841 20 50 0 50 50 0 

Business Plan Items
Resurfacing access roads CHR111/6801 0 0 133 133 90 (43)
Market Properties CHR105/6801 0 0 0 0 0 0 

New Builds (RTB 1-4-1)
Unidentified CHR105/6801 0 2,425 0 (2,425) 0 0 0 
Market Properties CHR106/6801 1,350 0 0 975 975 1,650 675 
Sheds Lane CHR112/6801 15 15 0 15 15 0 
Newton Grove CHR113/6801 247 134 188 322 322 0 
Frambury Lane CHR114/6801 354 168 370 538 538 0 
The Moors CHR116/6801 46 2,432 759 3,191 270 (2,921) 1,960 
Thaxted Road CHR117/6801 0 0 0 150 150 150 0 
Great Chesterford CHR118/6801 1,342 0 0 1,300 1,300 1,350 50 

Redevelopment Scheme
Sheltered Schemes
Reynolds Court CHR107/6801 58 0 110 110 110 0 
Hatherley Court CHR108/6801 666 0 482 482 869 387 
Walden Place CHR109/6801 10 1,000 787 1,787 25 (1,762) 1,762 
Total HRA 6,187 9,769 3,086 0                    12,855 8,977 (3,878) 3,742 

P
age 31



Appendix E continued...

Financing of Capital Programme

General Fund Housing Revenue Account
£'000 £'000

Grants and Contributions 307 72
Revenue Contribution (RCCO) 712 1,743
Internal Borrowing 3,285 0
Reserves 2,466 878
S106 0 602
Capital Receipts 0 1,748
Major Repairs Reserve 0 3,935

6,770 8,977
Total Financing 15,747

P
age 32



Appendix E continued…
Section 106 Balances

With Conditions 31 March 2019 Income Adjustment
Drawn Down - 

Capital/Revenue
Balance at 31 Dec 

2019
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

S106 Receipts in Advance
Priors Green, Takeley 78 - - - 78 
Land north of Ingrams, Felsted 10 - - - 10 
Rochford Nurseries/Foresthall Park, Stansted 60 - - (40) 20 
The Orchard, Elsenham 42 - - - 42 
Wedow Road, Thaxted 53 - - - 53 
Sector 4 Woodlands Park, Gt Dunmow 10 - - - 10 
Keers Green Nurseries, Aythorpe Roding 120 - - - 120 
Land adjacent to S/W Hospital 31 - - - 31 
Land at Blossom Hill Farm, Henham 33 - - - 33 
Land at Webb & Hallett Road, Flitch Green, Felsted 33 - - - 33 
Land south side of Radwinter Road 49 - - - 49 
Total 519 - - (40) 479 

31 March 2019 Income Adjustment
Transferred to 
other bodies

Balance at 31 Dec 
2019

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
S106 Receipts in Advance
Sector 4 Woodlands Park (Helena Romanes School) 165 - - - 165 
Brewers End, Takeley 31 - - - 31 
Land adj Hailes Wood, Elsenham 10 - - - 10 
Land at Flitch Green, Felsted 67 - - - 67 
Land adjacent to S/W Hospital 16 - - (15) 1 
Ashdon Road Commercial Centre 26 - - - 26 
Land south of Stansted Road, Elsenham 53 - - - 53 
Land south of Ongar Road, Dunmow 17 - - - 17 
Land at 119 Radwinter Road, adj S/W Hospital 15 - - - 15 
Land North of Ongar Road, Gt Dunmow 21 - - - 21 
Land at Bury Water Lane, Newport 29 - - - 29 
Land south side of Radwinter  Road 36 - - (36) -
Land at Elsenham Nuseries 14 - - - 14 
Bury Water Lane, Newport 26 - - - 26 
Walpole Farm, Cambridge Road, Stansted 53 375 - (375) 53 
Land at Little Walden Road, Saffron Walden 120 - - (120) -
Land at London Road, Gt Chesterford - 400 (400) -
Grants and Contributions to Other Bodies 699 775 - (946) 528 

Without Conditions
31 March 2019 Income Adjustment

Drawn Down - 
Capital

Balance at 31 Dec 
2019

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
S106 Unapplied
Affordable Housing; 676 676 
Drawn Down - - - - -
Affordable Housing 676 - - - 676 
Dunmow Eastern Sector 18 - - - 18 
Woodlands Park, Gt Dunmow 36 - - - 36 
Bell College, Saffron Walden 15 - - - 15 
Priors Green, Takeley 8 - - - 8 
Foresthall Park, Stansted 33 - - - 33 
Lt Walden Road/Ashdon Road, Saffron Walden 98 - - - 98 
Oakwood Park, Takeley 5 - - - 5 
Total 889 - - - 889 

Other Bodies

Page 33



Appendix F
Treasury Management 2019/20 – Quarter 3

Investments April – December 2019

Date of 
Investment Counterparty

Amount 
(£)

Date of 
Repayment 

Interest 
Rate 

01-Apr-19 Coventry City Council 2,500,000 18-Apr-19 0.80%
01-Apr-19 DMO 2,500,000 04-Apr-19 0.50%
02-Apr-19 DMO 1,000,000 04-Apr-19 0.50%
04-Apr-19 DMO 1,500,000 11-Apr-19 0.50%
10-Apr-19 DMO 1,200,000 18-Apr-19 0.50%
15-Apr-19 DMO 1,500,000 18-Apr-19 0.50%
26-Apr-19 DMO 1,500,000 30-Apr-19 0.50%
01-May-19 DMO 1,500,000 09-May-19 0.50%
09-May-19 DMO 3,000,000 17-May-19 0.50%
15-May-19 DMO 2,000,000 17-May-19 0.50%
15-May-19 DMO 1,000,000 20-May-19 0.50%
24-May-19 DMO 1,000,000 03-Jun-19 0.50%
31-May-19 DMO 1,500,000 03-Jun-19 0.50%
03-Jun-19 DMO 1,500,000 05-Jun-19 0.50%
03-Jun-19 DMO 3,000,000 11-Jun-19 0.50%
05-Jun-19 DMO 3,500,000 10-Jun-19 0.50%
11-Jun-19 Thurrock Council 2,000,000 11-Dec-19 0.80%
14-Jun-19 Conwy County Borough Council 2,000,000 16-Dec-19 0.80%
10-Jun-19 DMO 2,000,000 14-Jun-19 0.50%
10-Jun-19 DMO 1,500,000 11-Jun-19 0.50%
12-Jun-19 Surrey County Council 2,000,000 12-Dec-19 0.78%
11-Jun-19 DMO 2,000,000 12-Jun-19 0.50%
11-Jun-19 DMO 2,000,000 19-Jun-19 0.50%
17-Jun-19 DMO 4,500,000 19-Jun-19 0.50%
26-Jul-19 DMO 1,000,000 01-Aug-19 0.50%
01-Aug-19 DMO 1,000,000 05-Aug-19 0.50%
05-Aug-19 DMO 750,000 16-Aug-19 0.50%
15-Aug-19 DMO 4,000,000 16-Aug-19 0.50%
02-Sep-19 DMO 1,000,000 05-Sep-19 0.50%
05-Sep-19 Cornwall Council 2,000,000 05-Dec-19 0.63%
05-Sep-19 DMO 1,000,000 19-Sep-19 0.50%
16-Sep-19 DMO 2,000,000 19-Sep-19 0.50%
08-Oct-19 DMO 1,000,000 18-Oct-19 0.50%
15-Oct-19 DMO 2,500,000 18-Oct-19 0.50%
17-Oct-19 DMO 1,500,000 18-Oct-19 0.50%
06-Nov-19 DMO 1,000,000 19-Nov-19 0.50%
15-Nov-19 DMO 4,000,000 19-Nov-19 0.50%
19-Nov-19 DMO 1,200,000 22-Nov-19 0.50%
05-Dec-19 Cornwall Council 2,000,000 05-Jun-20 0.85%
11-Dec-19 Thurrock Council 2,000,000 11-Jun-20 0.85%
16-Dec-19 Surrey Heath BC 2,000,000 16-Jun-20 0.85%
12-Dec-19 Northumbria Police Authority 2,000,000 07-Jul-20 0.85%
16-Dec-19 DMO 1,000,000 18-Dec-19 0.50%
16-Dec-19 DMO 3,000,000 19-Dec-19 0.50%

Page 34



Appendix F continued...

Money Market Funds Investments April – December 2019

Date of 
Investment Counterparty

Amount 
(£)

Date of 
Repayment 

Average 
daily 
Interest 
Rate

01-Apr-19 CCLA 1,000,000 On-going 0.73%
01-May-19 Federated 1,000,000 20-May-19 0.77%
03-Jun-19 Federated 1,000,000 On-going 0.74%
11-Jun-19 Invesco 1,000,000 19-Jun-19 0.75%
01-Jul-19 Invesco 1,000,000 18-Jul-19 0.73%
18-Jul-19 Invesco 500,000 15-Aug-19 0.73%
05-Aug-19 Invesco 500,000 15-Aug-19 0.72%
03-Sep-19 Invesco 700,000 21-Oct-20 0.71%
11-Sep-19 Invesco 300,000 21-Oct-20 0.71%
31-Oct-19 Invesco 1,000,000 On-going 0.72%

Page 35



Borrowing April – December 2019

Date of 
Investment Counterparty

Amount 
(£)

Date of 
Repayment 

Interest 
Rate 

01-Apr-19 Coventry City Council 2,500,000 18-Apr-19 0.80%
01-Apr-19 DMO 2,500,000 04-Apr-19 0.50%
02-Apr-19 DMO 1,000,000 04-Apr-19 0.50%
04-Apr-19 DMO 1,500,000 11-Apr-19 0.50%
10-Apr-19 DMO 1,200,000 18-Apr-19 0.50%
15-Apr-19 DMO 1,500,000 18-Apr-19 0.50%
26-Apr-19 DMO 1,500,000 30-Apr-19 0.50%
01-May-19 DMO 1,500,000 09-May-19 0.50%
09-May-19 DMO 3,000,000 17-May-19 0.50%
15-May-19 DMO 2,000,000 17-May-19 0.50%
15-May-19 DMO 1,000,000 20-May-19 0.50%
24-May-19 DMO 1,000,000 03-Jun-19 0.50%
31-May-19 DMO 1,500,000 03-Jun-19 0.50%
03-Jun-19 DMO 1,500,000 05-Jun-19 0.50%
03-Jun-19 DMO 3,000,000 11-Jun-19 0.50%
05-Jun-19 DMO 3,500,000 10-Jun-19 0.50%
11-Jun-19 Thurrock Council 2,000,000 11-Dec-19 0.80%
14-Jun-19 Conwy County Borough Council 2,000,000 16-Dec-19 0.80%
10-Jun-19 DMO 2,000,000 14-Jun-19 0.50%
10-Jun-19 DMO 1,500,000 11-Jun-19 0.50%
12-Jun-19 Surrey County Council 2,000,000 12-Dec-19 0.78%
11-Jun-19 DMO 2,000,000 12-Jun-19 0.50%
11-Jun-19 DMO 2,000,000 19-Jun-19 0.50%
17-Jun-19 DMO 4,500,000 19-Jun-19 0.50%
26-Jul-19 DMO 1,000,000 01-Aug-19 0.50%
01-Aug-19 DMO 1,000,000 05-Aug-19 0.50%
05-Aug-19 DMO 750,000 16-Aug-19 0.50%
15-Aug-19 DMO 4,000,000 16-Aug-19 0.50%
02-Sep-19 DMO 1,000,000 05-Sep-19 0.50%
05-Sep-19 Cornwall Council 2,000,000 05-Dec-19 0.63%
05-Sep-19 DMO 1,000,000 19-Sep-19 0.50%
16-Sep-19 DMO 2,000,000 19-Sep-19 0.50%
08-Oct-19 DMO 1,000,000 18-Oct-19 0.50%
15-Oct-19 DMO 2,500,000 18-Oct-19 0.50%
17-Oct-19 DMO 1,500,000 18-Oct-19 0.50%
06-Nov-19 DMO 1,000,000 19-Nov-19 0.50%
15-Nov-19 DMO 4,000,000 19-Nov-19 0.50%
19-Nov-19 DMO 1,200,000 22-Nov-19 0.50%
05-Dec-19 Cornwall Council 2,000,000 05-Jun-20 0.85%
11-Dec-19 Thurrock Council 2,000,000 11-Jun-20 0.85%
16-Dec-19 Surrey Heath BC 2,000,000 16-Jun-20 0.85%
12-Dec-19 Northumbria Police Authority 2,000,000 07-Jul-20 0.85%
16-Dec-19 DMO 1,000,000 18-Dec-19 0.50%
16-Dec-19 DMO 3,000,000 19-Dec-19 0.50%

Page 36



Document is Restricted

Page 37

Agenda Item 12
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 40

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 50

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 62

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 144

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 145

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 146

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 148

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 150

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 151

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 153

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 187

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 188

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 189

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 191

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 193

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 194

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 196

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 197

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 208

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 232

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 248

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 283

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 293

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	9 Energy and Climate Change Working Group - Terms of Reference
	10 Budget Outturn Forecast - Quarter 3
	12 Investment Opportunities 3 and 4
	Investment Opportunities 3 and 4
	Appendix A
	Appendix B
	Appendix C.1
	Appendix C.2
	Appendix C.3
	Appendix C.4
	Appendix C.5
	Appendix C.6
	Appendix D
	Appendix E.1
	Appendix E.2
	Appendix E.3
	Appendix E.4
	Appendix E.5
	Appendix E.6
	Appendix F
	Appendix G
	Appendix H
	Appendix I
	Appendix J
	Appendix K
	Appendix L


